# Application of Waiver of Kentucky Administrative Regulation Kentucky Board of Education



#### **School District:**

As superintendent of the named school district, I am requesting a waiver under KRS 156.160(2)(a) of Section 1, subsections (1) and (4) of 702 KAR 7:125 promulgated by the Kentucky Board of Education related to Pupil Attendance. The waiver(s) is requested in order to allow for attendance-based virtual learning that might remove barriers that exist to improve learning.

These waiver requests were reviewed and approved at a meeting of my district's Board of Education on:

The approval is contained in the board minutes that are available for review at the district's central office. The original copy of this request is also available at the district's central office.

I understand that this waiver request is subject to the review and approval of the Kentucky Board of Education (KBE). I further understand that if the KBE approves the waiver request specifically detailed herein, this application and its contents shall become a binding memorandum of understanding (MOU) entered into by and between the named school district and the Kentucky Department of Education (KDE) and both parties will be bound by the terms, conditions, agreements and assurances contained in this document and any attachments thereto. By signing below, the Superintendent and Board Chair represents that they have fully reviewed the contents of this document and agree to be bound by all terms, conditions, agreements, and assurances contained herein if approved by the KBE.

By signing below, the Superintendent and Board Chair affirmatively state that all information contained herein is true and correct to the best of their information and belief, and that they possess authority to bind the school district to this application and MOU

Superintendent Signature Print Name of Primary Point of Contact

Local Board Chair Signature Point of Contact Phone and Email

**Today's Date** 

This waiver request is only for the specific Section(s) named above. This request does not seek a waiver of any other Kentucky Administrative Regulation or of federal law.

### **702 KAR 7:125 Section 1(4) states:**

Pupils shall be physically present in the school to be counted in attendance except under the following conditions:

The district is requesting a waiver of this language to include in the definition of "the school" to include a public virtual school, program, or academy, established by a Kentucky Public School District, where

instruction occurs using digital platforms, technologies, with continued access to certified teachers. Where each student is assigned full-time to the virtual school, program, or academy and there are teachers and other staff assigned to support and provide instruction (via the annual superintendent assurance regarding the Kentucky Digital Learning Guidelines). The virtual learning experience design shall allow for the monitoring of each student's interactions and engagement online, allows for synchronous (or live) visual and verbal interactions and the review of student work and completion of assignments in both real-time and on-demand (asynchronous interactions).

### **702 KAR 7:125 Section 1(1) states:**

Daily attendance of pupils in elementary schools shall be determined by taking attendance one (1) time each day prior to the start of instruction and maintaining a pupil entry and exit log at each school.

The district is requesting that for any elementary school pupil that is enrolled full-time in a public virtual school, program, or academy daily attendance shall be determined by taking attendance twice a day: once at the beginning of instruction and once more in the second half of the school day (to account for full day or partial day funding mechanisms).

## Virtual School, Program or Academy Information

Which best describes the virtual school, academy or program the district will operate as a result of the waivers described above? (See school classifications)

### **School**

**A1 with separate principal and SBDM council** (A school under administrative control of a principal or head teacher and eligible to establish a School-Based Decision Making Council. An A1 school is not a program operated by, or as a part of, another school.

## **Program**

A full-time program, typically an A5 classified program, where the students' primary enrollment resides. An A5 program may also be used as a secondary enrollment for students in some cases. (District-operated alternative program with no definable attendance boundaries designed to remediate academic performance, improve behavior, or provide an enhanced learning experience)

## **Academy**

A "school within a school" model enabling students to be scheduled in a full-time virtual course load while retaining enrollment in their A1 school. (students are in a separate calendar within their A1 school)

What grade levels will your virtual school, academy or program serve as a result of the waiver described above?

Kindergarten	1st Grade	2nd Grade	3rd Grade
4th Grade	5th Grade	6th Grade	7th Grade
8th Grade	9th Grade	10th Grade	11th Grade

#### 12th Grade

In **Appendix A** please detail, based on your selection above, how instruction will be delivered for students in the program, including, but not limited to descriptions of digital platforms, staff deployment

### **District Assurances**

The district assures that:

- 1. Performance-Based virtual students included in the exception set forth at 702 KAR 7:125(1)(4)(g) shall not be covered by this waiver. The district shall continue to count Performance-Based virtual students in pupil attendance subject to all provisions of 702 KAR 7:125.
- 2. Attendance shall be tracked by a certified teacher at a course level for virtual middle and high school students covered by this waiver. Each course shall have attendance stored in the student information system attendance tables following KDE guidance. Attendance shall be tracked by a certified teacher at least two times each school day for fully virtual elementary school students with checks three hours apart. Each course shall have attendance stored in the student information system attendance tables following KDE guidance. These courses shall not be set up as virtual/performance-based courses.
- 3. Attendance clerks or other assigned district personnel shall reconcile attendance for each course/period to ensure proper codes are entered for absent students. Attendance events shall continue to be entered at the office level (i.e. Dr. Excuses/parent excuses). District understands and agrees that attendance information provided shall be subject to audit by KDE.
- 4. All truancy laws shall be followed for virtual students. District shall develop and implement policies to address virtual attendance absences, including the attendance status of students with an internet outage and the process to return students to in-person instruction for truancy violations, in addition to legal action which may be required by KRS 159.150, 159.180, and other applicable truancy laws.
- 5. Only students whose families have requested to be enrolled in the virtual school, program, or academy are included under this waiver, accompanied by school and district approved documentation resulting from locally adopted policies for enrollment. No student shall be involuntarily placed in the virtual school, program, or academy. No student shall be placed in the virtual school, program, or academy solely due to disciplinary reasons. The Admissions and Release Committee (ARC) of any student with an Individual Education Program (IEP) pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) shall document the students enrollment in the virtual school, program, or academy in the ARC Conference Summary.
- 6. All students shall be full-time enrolled in the virtual school, program, or academy.
- 7. Only students with determined appropriate digital access and support beyond the school campus shall be candidates for enrollment in the virtual school, program, or academy. The district shall establish and implement an application and on-boarding process to ensure students and families understand the expectations for full-time enrollment in a virtual school, program, or academy and a determination of candidacy. The district shall ensure all students enrolled in virtual school, program, or academy have appropriate digital access to fully participate in and access the virtual program.
- 8. The virtual school, program, or academy shall have teachers and other staff assigned to support and provide instruction aligned to the grade-level expectations established in the *Kentucky Academic Standards* (*KAS*), including the selection, vetting, and usage of high-quality instructional resources aligned to the *KAS* and grade-level appropriate work. The use of standards-aligned high-quality instructional resources and curriculum is also assured via the annual

superintendent assurance regarding the Kentucky Digital Learning Guidelines. District shall maintain evidence of having systemic formative assessment processes in place to: (1) accurately measure student progress on grade-level standards for students enrolled in a virtual school, program, or academy; and (2) support students enrolled in the virtual school, program, or academy needing accelerated learning on grade-level standards within Tier 1 universal instruction as well as those students who need more targeted Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions and supports.

- 9. The virtual school, program, or academy shall implement synchronous (real-time or live) strategies and digital platforms for two-way student to teacher visual and verbal interactions. Additionally the virtual school, program, or academy shall utilize a learning management system (LMS) or other digital platforms that allows teachers to monitor student's progress, interactions and engagement with the teacher and other students online for the review of student work and completion of assignments in both real-time and on-demand (asynchronous interactions). District understands and that frequent live, regularly-scheduled contact with a Kentucky certified teacher is suggested to produce more effective results and assures that the virtual school, program, or academy implemented pursuant to waivers contained herein will prioritize frequent live, regularly-scheduled contact with a Kentucky certified teacher.
- 10. The district shall fully comply with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, and all applicable laws and regulations for the education of students with disabilities. District shall fully implement accommodations and Individual Education Programs (IEP) for students with disabilities enrolled in a virtual school, program, or academy. District shall ensure that all Section 504 Teams and Admissions and Release Committees (ARC) were involved in determining how all special education, related services, and accommodations will be implemented for students with disabilities in the virtual setting.
- 11. The district shall ensure a system of high-quality professional learning on the high-quality instructional resources and on evidence-based instructional practices for virtual learning.
- 12. Fully virtual students shall be assigned a schedule that aligns with the standard day of in-person students. Virtual student schedules shall adhere to the standard day and hour requirements set forth at KRS 158.070.
- 13. District shall document all fully virtual students as non-transported for transportation funding purposes.
- 14. District understands that meals provided to students in a non-congregate setting for school year 2021-2022 are not eligible to receive reimbursement from the United States Department of Agriculture under the USDA School Meal Programs, absent approved USDA waivers. District shall review and consider how this may impact students enrolled in a virtual school, program, or academy pursuant to this waiver.
- 15. District understands that pursuant to KRS 156.010, the Commissioner of Education has authority for monitoring the management of school districts, including administration and finance, implementation of state and federal laws and regulations, and student performance. District understands that KRS 156.210 provides the Commissioner of Education with access to the papers, books and records of all teachers, superintendents, or other public-school officials. District hereby agrees that such authority specifically extends to all aspects of its operation of a virtual school, program, or academy pursuant to this waiver request and MOU. District hereby agrees that it shall ensure full and timely cooperation during any program review or audit of any aspect of its operation of a virtual school, program, or academy pursuant to this waiver request and MOU.

# Appendix A - Plan Narrative

### **Duration**

If approved by the KBE and signed by the Commissioner of Education or authorized designee, this MOU shall be effective beginning July 1, 2021 and shall continue in effect until June 30, 2022 or termination as provided herein, whichever occurs first.

## **Termination**

Pursuant to KRS 156.160(2)(c), this MOU shall be subject to termination upon a determination by the Kentucky Board of Education that the school district has subsequently failed to meet the intent of the waiver and assurances contained herein. The parties agree that such a determination by the Kentucky Board of Education shall be final and binding on the parties hereto.

Commissioner of Education or Designee Kentucky Department of Education Date

### Appendix A

Any student who is accepted into the K-5 expansion of the Pathfinder School will be provided with a computer and WiFi access if needed.

**Core Instruction**: Teachers and PLCs should use the <u>JCPS Curriculum Frameworks</u> to plan standards-aligned, inquiry and project-based units and lessons for grade-level instruction.

The district will support specific digital curricular resources listed in the **Digital Tools** section and the vetted instructional resources linked <u>here</u>.

Tiered Supports/Interventions (Tier 2 and 3) should be provided to students. *Exact Path* and *Study Island* are a part of the Edmentum Suite and have been funded district-wide for tiered support/intervention. The district <a href="MTSS website">MTSS website</a> provides additional context for instructional support for students to accelerate learning outcomes.

The <u>JCPS Teacher Backpack</u> houses instructional and curricular resources as a one-stop shop to provide consistency of use and selection of resources across the district. Examples for project-based learning are: <u>Adventure planning template</u> and <u>weekly plan</u>.

### <u>Instructional Strategies & Methods</u>

**Recommendation:** Google Classroom will serve as the instructional delivery learning management platform. Opportunities for synchronous learning experiences will be required. Lessons should be provided in whole group, small group, or individual settings. Lessons should be recorded to be made available for students to watch at a later time or to be provided to reinforce learning. Content and assignments should be made available for students to work on asynchronously.

Instructional methods should be designed to support deeper learning and equity outcomes. The Deeper Learning page can be found <a href="https://example.com/here">here</a>. A focus on interdisciplinary practices should occur to address various content standards collaboratively - which could be accomplished through the creation of <a href="https://example.com/Choice Boards">Choice Boards</a>. Lesson design should use the district tools, such as the <a href="https://example.com/ARE tool">ARE tool</a>, to be responsive to student backgrounds and contexts. Instructional strategies supporting <a href="https://example.com/students">students</a> <a href="https://example.com/with-this-part of-planning">with disabilities</a>, <a href="https://enample.com/English Learners">English Learners</a>, and <a href="https://english.com/gifted supports">gifted supports</a> should be a part of planning. Learning experiences should be designed for deep engagement to promote thinking and the creation of artifacts/evidence of authentic learning.

<u>Here</u> are instructional shifts for supporting student-centered hybrid learning environments.

#### **Assessment & Grading**

Students should receive on-going, descriptive feedback on their work through the use of rubrics and goal setting conversations. Teachers will use the district-wide grading and progress/promotion standards.

*Infinite Campus* and *Mastery Connect* will be the systemwide tools used for communicating student performance and grading.

## **Digital Resources and Tools**

These programs are available to support student learning in the elementary virtual school (as well as available to all schools):

Technology Resources	Purpose	Audience
ThinkCERCA Instructional Resource	Online platform that challenges students in critical thinking, argumentative writing, and reading skills and strategies	3-12
Literacy Footprints: Digital Reader Instructional Resource	Provides digital access to leveled books for students and teachers for remote guided reading lessons	K-5
Edmentum Suite Curricular Resource	Exact Path - Adaptive diagnostic assessments with individualized learning pathways to promote growth in math and reading	K-12
	Study Island - Standards-based practice and assessments	K-12
Google Classroom Instructional Delivery	Helps students and teachers communicate, collaborate, organize and manage assignments	K-12
Google Meet Instructional Delivery	Synchronous communication tool	K-12
Screencastify Instructional Tool	Screen recording tool that can be used to create on- demand videos that support asynchronous learning	K-12
Jamboard Instructional Tool	Interactive whiteboard	K-12
Gale for Students Instructional Resource	Databases and primary sources, as well as learning resources and products for students and libraries (K-12)	K-12
Gale for Educators Curricular Resource	Databases and primary sources, as well as learning resources and products for schools and libraries for educators/adults	K-12
Read&Write Instructional Tool	A literacy toolbar that provides personalized support, making documents, web pages and Google Drive files (including PDFs & ePub) more accessible	K-12
Mastery Connect Instructional Resource	Assessment and benchmark software	K-12

# **Consistent Structures**

e sc	chool will address the following:
	MTSS plan
	ECE, EL, and GT supports
	Student communications/outreach
	School orientations
	Orientations/considerations for transitioning students (K, 6, 9)
	Parent supports, trainings, resources
	Library books and supplemental materials for students (including online materials)
	Social-emotional supports for students
	Language services
	Student organizational tools

### **Staff Deployment**

Families will be able to register students electronically for the K-5 expansion to Pathfinder. Teaching staff will need to be hired quickly. We plan to begin with retired teachers so that we do not interfere with staffing of other K-5 schools.